
CAPSULE SUMMARY 
PG: 76B-'8J2 
Edgar W. Grimes House 
6015 Old Branch Avenue 
Temple Hills, Prince George's County, Maryland 
c. 1900 
Private 

The Edgar W. Grimes House was constructed c. 1900 at 6015 Old Branch Avenue in Temple Hills near 

the unincorporated community of Camp Springs, Maryland. Edgar W. Grimes, a blacksmith owned the 

property from 1896 until 1911 before conveying the property to Guy H. Trueman. A grocer and real 

estate speculator, Trueman and his wife Cora R. Trueman (nee Grimes) contributed to the 

suburbanization of the Camp Springs area with the platting of "Trueman Heights" in 1953. The property 

stayed in the Trueman family until 2004. At this time, Guy H. Trueman, Jr., conveyed the property to 

Apex Heap, L.L.C., the current owner. The vernacular dwelling is representative of many of the original 

structures built during the early-twentieth-century along the burgeoning _Old Branch A venue suburban 

corridor. The Edgar W. Grimes House is an example of a domestic building type constructed in rural 

Prince George ' s County in the early 1900s exhibiting influences of popular suburban forms and styles. 

The building retains sufficient integrity to illustrate its original construction techniques, sty listic 

influences, and its significance as a single-family vernacular dwelling constructed at the beginning of the 

twentieth century in a section of Prince George's County transforming from rural to residential. 

The Edgar W. Grimes House is a two-story, three-bay single-family dwelling with an L-shaped form. 

The main block, which has an I-house form, is augmented by a two-story rear ell. Based on its form and 

materials, it appears that thi s dwelling was constructed circa 1900. Vernacular, the dwelling borrows 

stylist ic influences from other forms and styles such as the bungalow-inspired front porch and center­

gable pediment. 

Set on a so lid foundation with a parge coat, the wood-frame structure has been reclad in aluminum 

siding. Asphalt shingles cover the side-gable roof, which is finished with overhanging eaves and cornice 

returns. Vinyl siding, resembling board-and-batten , clads the upper gable ends as well as the center-gable 

pediment across the fac;ade. Located in the center bay of the fac,:ade, the single-leaf main entry holds a 

paneled wood door. Window openings hold 6/6 wood sash set in narrow, square-edge wood surrounds. 

The front porch design was influenced by the early-twentieth-century popularity of the bungalow form 

and the advent of rock-faced concrete block. Rock-faced concrete block piers feature molded caps on 

which are set battered wood posts. The one-story, four-bay porch has a half-hipped roof of asphalt 

shingles resting on the pier support system. Lattice has been placed over the square wood balusters. 

Additional alterations include the application of diagonal wood planks to infill the foundation. 
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courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber 19008 folio 74 

city, town Upper Marlboro tax map 98 tax parcel 7 4 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 
___ Contributing Resource in National Register District 
___ Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 
_ __ Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 
___ Recorded by HABS/HAER 
___ Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 
___ Other:. ___________ _ 

6. Classification 

Category 
__ district 
_ X_building(s) 
__ structure 

site 
__ object 

Ownership 
__ public 
_ X_private 
__ both 

Current Function 
__ agriculture __ landscape 
__ commerce/trade __ recreation/culture 
__ defense __ religion 
_X_domestic 
__ education 
__ funerary 
__ government 
__ health care 
__ industry 

_ _ social 
_ _ transportation 
__ work in progress 

unknown 
__ vacanUnot in use 
__ other: 

tax ID number 06 2804995 

Resource Count 
Contributing 

I 

Noncontributing 
0 buildings 

sites ----
- --- structures 
____ objects 

O Total ----

Number of Contributing Resources 
previously listed in the Inventory 

0 
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Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

The Edgar W. Grimes House is located at 6015 Old Branch Avenue in Temple Hills, Maryland. Situated on 
the west side of Old Branch Avenue, the dwelling has a setback of approximately fifty feet. The level, grassy 
lot includes a circular gravel driveway and concrete walkways. A dense stand of trees and shrubs is located at 
the southern end of the property. The western boundary is highlighted by a line of mature hardwoods and 
pine trees. There are no secondary resources associated with this property. 

DWELLING 

The Edgar W. Grimes House is a two-story, three-bay, vernacular single-family dwelling with an L-shaped 
form. The main block, which has an I-house form, is augmented by a two-story rear ell. Based on its form 
and materials, it appears that this dwelling was constructed circa 1900. 

Set on a solid foundation with a parge coat, the wood-frame structure has been reclad in aluminum siding. 
Asphalt shingles cover the side-gable roof, which is finished with overhanging eaves and cornice returns. 
Vinyl siding, resembling board-and-batten, clads the upper gable ends as well as the center-gable pediment 
across the fac;:ade (east elevation). 

Located in the center bay of the fac;:ade, the single-leaf main entry holds a paneled wood door with semi­
circular light. A wooden storm door with decorative scroll work shelters the door. Window openings on the 
fac;:ade hold 6/6 wood sash set in narrow, square-edge wood surrounds. The front porch design, with its rock­
faced concrete block piers, is similar to a Craftsman-style porch. Rock-faced concrete block pedestals feature 
molded caps on which are set battered wood piers. The one-story, four-bay porch has a half-hipped roof of 
asphalt shingles resting on the pier support system. Lattice has been placed over the square wood balusters. 
Additional alterations include the application of diagonal wood planks to infill the foundation. 

Fenestration of the north and south (side) elevations is limited to 616 wood-sash windows on the first and 
second stories. Whereas the openings on the south elevation are centered, the north elevation' s openings are 
justified to the west. Basement window openings have been covered with plywood from the exterior. There 
are no openings in the upper gable ends. 

The two-story rear ell extends two-bays to the west. Set on a solid parged foundation, this wood-frame 
structure has also been reclad in aluminum siding. The front-gable roof of asphalt shingles has the same 
overhanging eaves and cornice returns found on the main block. An interior-side brick chimney with parged 
cap pierces the northern slope. Fenestration consists of 616 wood-sash windows set in narrow, square-edge 
wood surrounds. Basement windows along the north elevation have been covered with plywood. The 
easternmost opening on the second story of the south (side) elevation is slightly smaller. The southwestern 
elbow of the ell and main block features a one-story porch. Set on a solid parged foundation, this wood-frame 
porch has been enclosed with aluminum siding and ribbons of 1/1 vinyl-sash windows. A shed roof of asphalt 
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shingles caps the porch. Sheltered by the porch is a single-leaf, paneled wood door with lights flanked by 6/6 
wood-sash windows. The west (rear) elevation of the ell has a window opening in the southern bay of the 
second story. The remaining elevation is obscured by a two-story, one-bay addition and a one-story addition 
which wraps the second-story addition. 

Based on its form and materials, it appears the two-story addition was constructed in the first quarter of the 
twentieth century. Clad in aluminum siding, the addition is capped by. a front-gable roof with the same 
overhanging eaves and cornice returns featured on the main block and ell, thus suggesting that all of the 
rooflines have been altered. Fenestration consists of 616 wood-sash windows set in narrow, square-edge wood 
surrounds. The first-story window on the north (side) is small. 

The one-story addition that wraps around the two-story addition and obscures the southern rear bay of the ell 
appears to have been constructed circa 1930. Set on a solid parged foundation, this wood-frame addition has 
been reclad in aluminum siding. The hipped roof of asphalt shingles has narrow overhanging eaves. A single­
leaf, paneled wood door with four lights is located on the south (side) elevation and accessed via concrete 
steps. A single-light transom completes the opening. Resembling sidelights, narrow l/l vinyl-sash windows 
flank the door opening. Paired 2/2 wood-sash windows in the southwest corner of the south elevation is part 
of a fish-eye corner window; the western sash having been covered with plywood from the exterior. 
Additional fenestration consists of a 6/6 wood-sash window and a four-light wood casement located in the 
northern end of the west (rear) elevation. 

INTEGRITY 

The Edgar W. Grimes House maintains a moderate degree of integrity of design, materials, and workmanship 
despite being reclad in aluminum siding, which is a reversible alteration. Furthermore, the horizontality of the 
original cladding material is maintained by the aluminum siding. All of the original wood windows on the 
first and second stories are extant. The rear additions have achieved historic significance in their own right 
based on their early-twentieth century date of construction. Their size and form are subservient to the larger 
main block and rear ell. Located along Old Branch Avenue, an arterial route in Prince George's County, this 
dwelling retains integrity of setting, location, feeling, and association. 
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Check and justify below 

economics 
education 

_ engineering 
entertainment/ 

recreation 
_ ethnic heritage 
_ exploration/ 

settlement 

health/medicine _ performing arts 
_ industry _ philosophy 

invention _ politics/government 
_ landscape architecture _ religion 

law science 
literature _ social history 

_ maritime history _ transportation 
_ military X other: Local Historv 

Architect/Builder Unknown 

Construction dates c. 1900, c. 1915, c. 1930 

Evaluation for: 

___ National Register ____ Maryland Register ____ not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

The Edgar W. Grimes House, constructed c. 1900, is located at 6015 Old Branch Avenue in Temple Hills 
near the unincorporated community of Camp Springs, Maryland. Edgar W. Grimes, a blacksmith owned 
the property from 1896 until 1911 before conveying the property to Guy H. Trueman. A grocer and real 
estate speculator, Trueman and his wife Cora R. Trueman (nee Grimes) contributed to the 
suburbanization of the Camp Springs area with the platting of "Trueman Heights" in 1953. The property 
stayed in the Trueman family until 2004. At that time, Guy H. Trueman, Jr., conveyed the property to 
Apex Heap, L.L.C., the current owner. The vernacular dwelling is representative of many of the original 
structures built during the early-twentieth-century along the burgeoning Old Branch Avenue suburban 
corridor. The Edgar W. Grimes House is an example of a domestic building type constructed in rural 
Prince George's County in the early 1900s exhibiting influences of popular suburban forms and styles. 
The building retains sufficient integrity to illustrate its original construction techniques, stylistic 
influences, and its significance as a single-family vernacular dwelling constructed at the beginning of the 
twentieth century in a section of Prince George 's County transforming from rural to suburban. 

HISTORIC CONTEXT 

The Edgar W. Grimes House is located in Temple Hills and is near Camp Springs, Maryland. Camp 
Springs was originally established in the mid-nineteenth century at the intersection of present-day Branch 
Avenue (MD 5) and Allentown Road. Camp Springs is located adjacent to and west of Joint Base 
Andrews Naval Air Facility. Today Camp Springs is roughly bounded by the Capital Beltway (1-495) on 
the north, Henson Creek and Cherryfield Road on the west, Kirby Road on the south, Joint Base Andrews 
Naval Air Facility on the east, and Wesson Drive on the northeast. 

Early maps of the area note that it was originally called "Allentown," in honor of the Allen family, who 
were large landholders in the community. Martenet's map of 1861 documents a settlement at the 
crossroads of present-day Branch Avenue and Allentown Road. The small community comprised several 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of 
Historic Properties Form 

Edgar W. Grimes House 
Continuation Sheet 

Number__§__ Page 1 

Inventory No. PG: 768-~2 

houses, a Methodist Church, school house, a blacksmith shop, and several stores. 1 By l 878, as 
documented by the Hopkins map, the growing community was also known as Camp Spring. The Hopkins 

. map denotes the Camp Spring post office, Methodist Church, blacksmith shop, and many residences, the 
majority of which were constructed between 1861 and l 878. 2 According to local legend, the community 
was named Camp Springs by the soldiers fighting in the Civil War who traveled through the area and set 
up camp near the abundant natural springs.3 

The community experienced remarkably slow growth throughout the late nineteenth century and into the · 
twentieth century. Widespread subdivision of rural agricultural land in the area did not begin until 1936 
with the creation of the T.B. Middleton Farm subdivision. This residential subdivision was created from 
Manchester Farm, a late-nineteenth-century farmstead. 4 The first buildings constructed in the subdivision 
were modest Craftsman-style bungalows located along Old Branch Avenue and Middleton Lane. 

Camp Springs remained a small, quiet, and rural community until World War II (1941-1945), when the 
need for housing and government facilities prompted development. In August 1942, President Franklin D. 
Roosevelt ordered the construction of a military airfield. The Camp Springs Army Airfield opened in 
May l 943. The Airfield was renamed Andrews Field in 1945 and in 1947, the name was changed to 
Andrews Air Force Base (now known as Joint Base Andrews Naval Air Facility).5 The opening of the 
military base encouraged steady growth in Camp Springs, albeit for a limited period. The majority of the 
twentieth-century development was located northwest of the intersection of Old Branch Avenue and 
Allentown Road, surrounding the earlier Middleton Farm subdivision. 

The property that the Edgar W. Grimes House is located on was once owned by the Sinclairs. In 1896, 
J.F. Sinclair and his wife, R.S.V. Sinclair, conveyed Y2 acre of the current property to Edgar W. Grimes.6 

Grimes increased his land holdings in 1901 with the acquisition of an additional one acre from the 
Sinclairs. 7 Based on the dwellings size, materials, and form, it is likely Grimes constructed the building 
sometime between these two transactions. 

1 Simon J. Martenet, " Atlas of Prince George's County, Maryland, 1861, Adapted from Martenet's Map of Prince George 's County, 
Maryland" (Baltimore: Simon J. Martenet C.E., 1861 ). 
2 G.M. Hopkins, " Atlas of Fifteen Miles Around Washington, Including the County of Prince George Maryland" (Philadelphia: G.M. 
Hopkins, C.E., 1878). 
3 KCI Technologies, "Camp Springs: Community Summary Sheet" (October 1999), 
http: //www. s ha. state. md. us/keep i ngc u rrent/ma in ta in Roads Bridges/bridges/ oppe/s u burbs/pg_ co. pd f. 
4 Prince George's County Land Records, Circuit Court, Plat Book SDH 4:92. 
5 316th Wing Public Affairs, "Andrews Air Force Base History," http: //www.andrews.af.mil/library/factsheets/factsheet.asp?id=4479, 
accessed 23 January 2009. 
6 J.F. Sinclair and R.S.V. Sinclair to Edgar W. Grimes, Prince George's County Land Records, JWB 38:585. 
7 R.S.V. Sinclair to Edgar W. Grimes, Prince George's County Land Records, 6:44. 
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Edgar W. Grimes was born about 1863 to Jeremiah Alfred Grimes and Elizabeth Barrett. At 17-years of 
age, Grimes was working as a blacksmith in the Oxon Hill area of Prince George's County. A bachelor, 
Grimes was a roomer in the home of Willi E. Gardner, also a blacksmith. The Gardners also rented a 
room to T.F. Reantel, a 21-year old wheelwright. Grimes, a blacksmith, married Mary Swann in 1892 and 
had three children, Frank Louis, Benjamin, and Inez.8 Mary passed away in 1905. By the time of the 1910 
U.S. Federal Census, Grimes had remarried. His new wife, Clara Virginia Hill, was the daughter of 
Edward Hill and Frances Club and was born in 1884.9 Edgar and Clara married in 1905 and had two 
daughters at the time of the 1910 census, Sally Viola and Bessie Virginia Grimes. At this time, Grimes 
owned his own blacksmith shop. 10 

In 1911 , the Grimes' conveyed the property to Guy H. Trueman. 11 Trueman and his wife, Cora R. 
Trueman (nee Grimes) are associated with the Mayhew-Barbaro House (PG: 76B-070), also in Camp 
Springs. Edgar, Mary, and Clara are all buried in Camp Springs at the Bells United Methodist Church 
Cemetery. 

Guy H. Trueman was born August 16, 1885 in the Nottingham District of Maryland and was the son of 
Henry T. Trueman, a farmer, and Florence E. Trueman. 12 He married Cora R. Grimes, also of Maryland, 
around 1910. Grimes, born in 1887, was the daughter of Henry W. Grimes, a farmer in Brandywine, and 
his wife, Sarah M. Grimes. 13 Trueman was employed as a retail merchant in the grocery business and in 
1920 was the proprietor of his own general store. 14 By 1930, the Truemans were living in Silver Hill and 
had four daughters, Katherine A., Evelyn R., Gladys H., and Sara, and a son, Guy Jr. Katherine, the 
couple's eldest daughter, worked at a dairy farm as a stenographer. 15 In 1933, Trueman was appointed a 

8 1900 U.S. Federal Census, Spauldings, Prince George's, Maryland, Rol l T623, Series 626, Page 148, Enumeration District 96, Edgar 
Grimes. 
9 " Descendents of Jeremiah Grimes," Family tree Maker's Genealogy Site, http: //familytreemaker.genealogy.com/users/h/e/r/Joann-­
Herring/GENE5-0003.html (accessed June 30, 2011) 
10 1910 U.S. Federal Census, Spaulding, Prince George's, Maryland, Roll T624, Series 567, Page 158, Enumeration District 0065, 
Image 260, FHL Number 1374580, Edgar W. Grimes. 
11 Edgar W. Grimes and Clara V. Grimes to Guy H. Trueman, Prince George's County Land Records, 62:354. 
12 1900 U.S. Federal Census, Nottingham, Prince George's, Maryland, Roll T623 , Series 626, Page 4A, Enumeration District 94, Guy 
H. Truman. 
13 1900 U.S. Federal Census, Brandywine, Prince George's, Mary land, Roll T623, Series 626, Page 19A, Enumeration District 103, 
Henry W. Grimes. 
14 1920 U.S. Federal Census, Spauldings, Prince George's, Mary land, Ro ll T625, Series 674, Page 78, Enumeration District 76, 
Image 458, Guy Trueman. 
15 1930 U.S. Federal Census, 1930; Spaulding, Prince George's, Maryland; Roll 877, Page JOA , Enumeration District 16; Image 
9/0.0, Guy H. Trueman. 
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trustee of the Camp Springs School by the Prince George's County Board of Education and he was also a 
certified notary public. 16 

Trueman, acting on the burgeoning population figures of the Washington metro area and the expanded 
highway system, subdivided a large portion of his land holdings in the 1950s. Located west and southwest 
of the Edgar W. Grimes House, this subdivision was known as Trueman Heights. Platted in 1953, the 
subdivision did not sell well at first. In fact, construction on a wide scale did not come to Trueman 
Heights until the late 1960s. The earliest found advertisements for the neighborhood appear in 1963 . A 
listing for the dwelling at 5805 Hartwell Street boasted of the "new brick ramblers" with three or four 
bedrooms, 2.5 baths, multiple fireplaces, modern kitchens, air conditioning, full basements, and plastered 
walls. 17 Information related to the dwelling or its occupants during the majority of the last half of the 
twentieth century could not be located. 

In 1993, the Trueman daughters conveyed 6015 Old Branch Avenue (then known as Lot #32 in the 
Trueman Heights Subdivision) to their younger brother. 18 Information related to Guy H. Trueman, Jr. 
could not be located. In February 2004, Guy H. Trueman, Jr. conveyed the property to Apex Heap, L.L.C. 
This company currently rents the dwelling, along with multiple other dwellings along Old Branch Avenue 
previously owned by the Truemans. 19 

16 "Trustees Revealed in Prince George's: Board of Education Names Three for Each School in County .. " The Washington Post (1923-
1954), May 12, 1933, http://www.proquest.com/ (accessed June 6, 201 1 ). 
17 "C lassified Ad 242," The Washington Post, Times Herald (1959-19 73) , November 17, 1963, http://www.proquest.com/ (accessed 
June 27, 2011). 
18 Aleine T. Woolridge, Evelyn R. Meyers, Gladys H. Weirich , Elizabeth T. Nottingham, and Guy H. Trueman, Jr. to Guy H. 
Trueman, Jr. , Prince George's County Land Records, VJ 9172 :410. 
19 Guy H. Trueman, Jr. to Apex Heap, L.L.C., Prince George's County Land Records, REP 19008:74. 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property 
Acreage of historical setting 
Quadrangle name 

0.845 
1.5 
Anacostia 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

Quadrangle scale: _I _:2_4~0_0~0 ____ _ 

The Edgar W. Grimes House is located on a 0.845-acre parcel. Old Branch Avenue forms the northeastern boundary of the 
property. The northwestern boundary follows Trueman Drive. Various mature trees and scattered shrubs edge the southeastern 
boundary of the property. The Edgar W. Grimes House has been associated with Lot 32 of the Trueman Heights Subdivision as 
noted on Tax Map 98 since its construction c. 1900. 
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Paul Weishar and Maria Dayton I Architectural Historians 
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to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41 , Section 181 KA, 
197 4 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only 
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Deed 
JWB 38:585 
October 9, 1896 

Deed 
6:44 
July8,1901 

Deed 
62:354 
November 29, 191 I 

Deed 
WWW 1526:400 
August 8, 1952 

Deed 
WWW 1526:404 
August 15, 1952 

Deed 
NLP 5100:760 
May 24, 1979 

Deed 
VJ 9172 :4 10 
November 19, 1993 

Deed 
REP 19008:74 
February 4, 2004 

CHAIN OF TITLE 

PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

J.F. Sinclair and R.S .V . Sinclair to Edgar W. Grimes. (Yz acre) 

R.S.V. Sinclair (widow) to Edgar W. Grimes. (I acre) 

Edgar W. Grimes and Clara V. Grimes to Guy H. Trueman. (I Yi acres) 

Guy H. Trueman and Cora R. Trueman to Matilda W. Duvall. (multiple parcels) 

Matilda W. Duvall to Guy H. Trueman and Cora R. Trueman. (multiple parcels) 

Guy H. Trueman , Jr. , executor of the Estate of Guy H. Trueman, to Aleine T . Woolridge, 
Evelyn R. Meyers, Gladys H. Weirich, Elizabeth T. Nottingham, and Guy H. Trueman, Jr. 
(multiple parcels) 

Aleine T. Woolridge, Eve lyn R. Meyers, Gladys H. Weirich, Elizabeth T. Nottingham, 
and Guy H. Trueman, Jr. to Guy H. Trueman, Jr. (Lot# 32, Trueman Heights 
Subdivision) 

Guy H. Trueman, Jr. to Apex Heap, L.L.C. (Lot # 32, Trueman Heights Subdivision) 
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